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Navigating the Law of Politics 

September 21, 2018 
 
The Honorable Susan W. Brooks, Chairwoman 
The Honorable Theodore E. Deutch, Ranking Member 
Committee on Ethics 
U.S. House of Representatives 
1014 Longworth House Office Building 
Washington, DC  20515-6328 

 
Dear Chairwoman Brooks and Ranking Member Deutch: 

 
 This letter responds to a Report and Findings of Fact and Citations to Law from the Office 

of Congressional Ethics concerning alleged conduct by Congressman Tom Garrett (“OCE 

Referral”) provided to the Committee on Ethics (“Committee”) on September 5, 2018.  We 
understand that the Committee may release the OCE Referral at some point to the public, and if 

the Committee does so, we request that this letter and the enclosed statement from Congressman 
Garrett be included with any such release. 

 

 The OCE Referral addressed two alleged violations: 1) Congressman Garrett may have 
used his congressional staff to perform unofficial work and personal errands; and 2) Congressman 

Garrett hired an employee from his official congressional staff to work for his congressional 
campaign committee and that the employee may have performed personal errands while being 

paid by Congressman Garrett’s congressional campaign committee.  Congressman Garrett is 
pleased that the OCE recommended the second allegation be dismissed.  This letter, therefore, is 

meant to address the first allegation. 
 
 As to the first allegation, Congressman Garrett and his wife Flanna Garrett deny that they 
used congressional staff to perform unofficial work and personal errands.  Congressman Garrett 
believes he has always held himself and his office to the highest ethical standards and does not 

believe that any requests made to congressional staff to facilitate the work of his office were 
unofficial or personal in nature.  More specifically, Congressman Garrett does not recall ever 
receiving a single complaint from any congressional employee questioning whether requests were 

unofficial or personal in nature.  The Congressman maintained an open-door policy for receiving 
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and addressing such concerns, and held a question and answer session for his staff and counsel for 
this Committee on April 26, 2018 (a recording of which he has produced to the Committee). 
 

As you are aware, Congressman Garrett decided not to provide information to the OCE 
during its review out of deference to the requests for information from this Committee (and to 
avoid wasting both taxpayer and his own funds for what was a duplicative and redundant inquiry).  
Congressman Garrett also declined the OCE’s invitation to participate in its review due to 
concerns with the way the OCE conducts itself, and those concerns are not abated upon review of 
the OCE Referral.  The OCE Referral is riddled with falsities and innuendo and demonstrates 
profound concerns about how the OCE conducted its investigation into this matter.   

 
The OCE Referral relies largely on the interview of “Matt Missen,” a former employee of 

the Office of Congressman Garrett.  Although Mr. Missen was interviewed by the OCE, the OCE 

inexplicably still found him to have refused to cooperate with its review.1  Mr. Missen admitted 
under oath to having lied to the press concerning the allegations against Congressman Garrett,2 but, 

the OCE Referral includes the following paradoxical observation: 
 

The Board notes that Mr. Missen’s employment with Representative Garrett’s 
office was terminated in early June 2018. Apart from the circumstances 

surrounding his termination that may have resulted in some degree of bias, the 

OCE found Mr. Missen’s testimony to be detailed and forthcoming. After 
interviewing with the OCE, Mr. Missen did not respond to the OCE’s repeated 

requests for documents.   
 

OCE Referral at 8, fn. 20. 
 
Mr. Missen’s employment was indeed terminated by Congressman Garrett for cause. As the 

Committee is aware, Mr. Missen was terminated for “failure to well and faithfully discharge the 
duties of Communications Director.”3  I have enclosed a statement from Congressman Garret that 

addresses his employment as well as the employment of other official staff upon which the OCE 
relied on in reaching its findings. 

 

                                                      
1 OCE Referral at 5.   
2 OCE Referral at 7. 
3 Memo from W.R. Bill Janis, Chief of Staff, Congressman Thomas A. Garrett, Jr., to Matt Missentiz, 
Communications Director, RE:  Immediate Termination for Cause, June 8, 2018 (enclosed). 
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 As you requested, I have also enclosed what we believe to be all communications between 
my firm and the OCE on this matter. Should any additional communications not included be 
located subsequent to this letter, we will provide them to you as soon as practicable.  As you will 
note upon  
 

Please let me know if you have any additional questions. 
 
      Very truly yours, 
 
       
      Elliot S. Berke 
 

Enclosure 

 

   
 















09/19/2018 

Account of reimbursements submitted for payment by Matthew R. Missentzis during his time of 
employment in Congressman Thomas A. Garrett, Jr. congressional office. 

 
Expenses paid out before departure. 

1/24/18 – 1/28/18 Mileage reimbursement for trip to district. On this expense two lines were added 
that were travel from home  to the workplace in DC and returning. This is 
against house rules for reimbursements as travel to and from your duty station is not reimbursable.  

Total: $5.99 

 

2/3/18-2/3/18 Mileage reimbursement for meetings around DC. Last line included mileage to his home 
at the end of the day  This is against house rules for reimbursements as travel 
to and from your duty station is not reimbursable. 

Total: $2.99 

 

1/2/18-1/6/18 Uber expenses due to a lockdown of the cannon garage where Mr. Missentzis had 
parking privileges.  Attached to this request were two uber expenses to a restaurant/bar strip in 
Arlington at 10:31 pm and 11:20 pm. While the lockdown would have prevented Mr. Missentzis from 
having his car, his personal expenses in the evening are not reimbursable. The other uber expenses on 
this request were for meetings. 

Total: $ 9.48 

 

10/15/17-10/30/17 Mileage reimbursement for trip to the district included two lines of travel from 
home  to the workplace in DC and returning. This is against house rules for 
reimbursements as travel to and from your duty station is not reimbursable. 

Total: $5.99 

 

1/6/18-1/25/18 Mileage reimbursement for trip to district. On this expense one line was added that 
were travel from home  to the workplace in DC. This is against house rules for 
reimbursements as travel to and from your duty station is not reimbursable.  

Total: $3.10 

 

 

 



Expenses Submitted Week of Termination 

10/03/17-10/17/17 Mixed expense request included two uber expenses from home to work. This is 
against house rules for reimbursements as travel to and from your duty station is not reimbursable 

Total: $ 10.49 

 

03/19/18-03/26/18 Mixed Reimbursement request for a trip to the district included two lines of travel 
from home  to the workplace in DC and returning. This is against house rules 
for reimbursements as travel to and from your duty station is not reimbursable. 

Total: $7.27 

 

In addition to these expense, Mr. Missentzis submitted duplicate requests for reimbursements even 
though he had been provided with documentation stating his reimbursements had been processed and 
paid.  On the duplicate expenses he changed the detailed description, expense category or the number 
of lines on the reimbursement. This gave cause for a complete audit of his expenses where it was 
discovered that he had been incorrectly reimbursed for $30.54 for travel to and from his residence. This 
was missed in the original review of his expenses due to the nature in which it was placed with other 
travel from a trip to the district. It was also discovered that an over payment of $20 was made due to 
poor quality of the scanned copy of his expense requests. The expenses submitted the week of 
termination were changed to deduct the inappropriate funds and the additional $50.54 was deducted 
from his requests to accommodate for the over payment to him for his previous expenses. Mr. 
Missentzis was notified in writing regarding this deduction from his expense requests. 

 

Jennifer Bailey 
Financial Administrator 
Congressman Thomas A. Garrett, Jr. 
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